

## Louisiana Board of Pharmacy

3388 Brentwood Drive
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-1700
www.pharmacy.la.gov



# **Minutes**

**Regular Meeting** 

Wednesday, August 17, 2011 at 1:00 p.m.

Louisiana Board of Pharmacy 3388 Brentwood Drive Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-1700

### **Table of Contents**

Agenda Item No.	<u>Description</u> <u>P</u>	<u>age No</u>
1.	Call to Order	3
2.	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance	3 3
3.	Quorum Call	3
4.	Call for Additional Agenda Items	4
5.	Consideration of Minutes	4
6.	Report on Action Items	4
7.	Confirmation of Acts	4
8.	Opportunity for Public Comment	5
9.	Presentation of Pharmacist Gold Certificate	5
11.	Committee Reports	
	A. Finance	5
	B. Application Review	6
	C. Reciprocity	7
	D. Violations	7
	E. Impairment	8
	F. Reinstatement	10
	G. Tripartite	10
	H. Regulation Revision	10
	I. Executive	11
	Staff Reports	4.4
	<ul><li>J. Prescription Monitoring Program</li><li>K. General Counsel</li></ul>	11 12
	L. Executive Director	13
12.	Request for Opinion: Pharmacist Control of Access	13
12.	To Automated Medication Systems	5
13.	Request for Opinion: Disposition of Undispensed	J
	Prescription Medications from Central Fill	
	Pharmacy	14
14.	Request for Opinion: Manufacture & Distribution at	17
17.	Wholesale of Patient-Specific Treatment Sets	14
15.	Announcements	15
16.	Adiourn	15
16.	Adiourn	15

A regular meeting of the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy was held on Wednesday, August 17, 2011 in the Boardroom of the Board's office, located at 3388 Brentwood Drive in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. The meeting was held pursuant to public notice, each member received notice, and notice was properly posted.

#### 1. Call to Order

Mr. Carl Aron, President, called the meeting to order at 1:10 p.m.

#### 2. Invocation & Pledge

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Brian Bond, and he delivered the invocation. Mr. Ryan Dartez then led the group in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### 3. Quorum Call

Mr. Aron called upon the Secretary, Dr. Lois Anderson, to call the roll.

#### **Members Present:**

Mr. Joseph L. Adams

Dr. Lois R. Anderson

Mr. Carl W. Aron

Mr. Brian A. Bond

Mr. Clovis S. Burch

Mr. Ryan M. Dartez

Ms. Jacqueline L. Hall

Mr. Richard M. Indovina, Jr.

Mr. Marty R. McKay

Ms. Chris B. Melancon

Mr. Ronald E. Moore

Mr. Blake P. Pitre

Mr. T. Morris Rabb

Ms. Pamela G. Reed

Dr. Deborah H. Simonson

Mr. Richard A. Soileau

#### **Members Absent:**

Ms. Sydnie M. Durand

#### **Staff Present:**

Mr. Malcolm J. Broussard, Executive Director

Mr. Carlos M. Finalet, III, General Counsel

Mr. M. Joseph Fontenot, Prescription Monitoring Program Manager

Dr. Edwin H. Adams, Pharmacist Compliance Officer

Mr. Stephen L. Collins, Pharmacist Compliance Officer

Mr. Huey J. Savoie, Pharmacist Compliance Officer

Mr. Rayland M. Trisler, Pharmacist Compliance Officer

Mr. Benjamin S. Whaley, Pharmacist Compliance Officer

#### **Guests:**

Mr. & Mrs. Adolph Bynum, Sr.

Mr. Russell Champagne - Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Rainey

Ms. Penny Scruggins – Kolder, Champagne, Slaven & Rainey

Mr. Mitch Ward – Target Pharmacies

Mr. George Chapman – Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Mr. Brad Reed - Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Mr. Danny Donato – Omnicare Pharmacies

Mr. Richard Hood – Omnicare Pharmacies

Mr. James Boyce – Prevalence Health

Mr. Ken Alexander – La. Hospital Association

Mr. Devin Richardson – Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Mr. Braden Chauvin – Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Mr. Billy Lawley – Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Mr. Carl Gulino – Wal-Mart Pharmacies

Ms. Debra Jarratt – Baton Rouge General Hospital Pharmacy

Mr. Ken Miller – Baton Rouge General Hospital Pharmacy

Mr. David Hastings – Baton Rouge General Hospital Pharmacy

Mr. Randal Johnson – La. Independent Pharmacies Association

Ms. Phyllis Perron – La. Pharmacists Association

Ms. Linda Spradley – Spradley & Spradley, Inc.

Dr. Anderson certified that 16 members were present, constituting a guorum.

#### 4. Call for Additional Agenda Items

Mr. Aron asked if there were any additional agenda items, but none were offered. Mr. Aron then requested authority from the Board to reorder the agenda as necessary for the purpose of adjusting the sequence of various reports or guests. There were no objections to that request.

#### 5. Consideration of Minutes

Mr. Aron reminded the members they had received the draft minutes from the Regular Board Meeting on May 4, 2011 and the Administrative Hearing on May 5, 2011. With no objections, he waived the reading thereof. Hearing no requests for amendment or any objection to their approval, Mr. Aron declared the minutes were approved as presented. Dr. Anderson reminded the members to sign the Minute Book.

#### 6. Report on Action Items

Mr. Broussard indicated there were no action items pending from the prior meeting.

#### 7. Confirmation of Acts

Pursuant to Mr. Aron's declaration that the officers, committees, and executive director had attended to the business of the Board since the last meeting in accordance with policies and procedures previously approved by the Board, Mr. Bond moved,

**Resolved**, that the actions taken and decisions made by the Board officers, Board committees, and Executive Director in the general conduct and transactions of Board business since May 5, 2011 are

approved, adopted, and ratified by the entire Board.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

#### 8. Opportunity for Public Comment

Mr. Aron reminded the members and guests that Act 850 of the 2010 Legislature requires all public bodies to provide an opportunity for public comment at all meetings and for each agenda item upon which a vote is to be taken. He solicited general comments from the guests present, but none were offered.

9. Special Order of the Day: Presentation of Pharmacist Gold Certificate Mr. Aron introduced Mr. Adolph Bynum, Sr. to the members and guests present. He noted that Mr. Bynum received his original license in 1961 and then recounted the highlights of his professional career to date. He then presented a Pharmacist Gold Certificate to Mr. Bynum in recognition of his fifty years of professional practice. Mr. Bynum thanked the members for their service, and then the members and guests present recognized Mr. Bynum with a standing ovation.

At this point, Mr. Aron re-ordered the agenda.

12. Request for Opinion: Pharmacist Control of Access to Automated Medication Systems

Mr. Aron recognized guests present from Baton Rouge General Hospital Pharmacy. Representatives from that facility questioned the Board as to control of access to automated medication systems in hospitals. In particular, §1205 identifies the responsibilities of the pharmacist-in-charge of the system which includes "define access to the system." The facility suggested a balance of control between information system management and pharmacy would be preferable to one person. Following a brief discussion among the members, Mr. Rabb moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board interpret Chapter 12 of its rules such that the pharmacist-in-charge shall be solely responsible for defining access to an automated medication system.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

At this point, Mr. Aron returned to the posted agenda.

#### 10. Committee Reports

#### A. Finance Committee

Mr. Aron introduced Mr. Russell Champagne, the contracted CPA for the Board, to deliver his annual review of the Board's finances. Mr. Champagne directed the members to the *Final Report for Fiscal Year 2010-2011* in their meeting binder. He reviewed all of the statements as well as the Cumulative Fund Balance Report. He responded to questions from the members. Mr. Pitre then moved.

**Resolved**, that the Board accept the <u>Final Report for Fiscal Year</u> 2010-2011, subject to audit.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. Mr. Aron expressed his appreciation to Mr. Champagne for his firm's assistance

during the year.

Mr. Aron then called upon Mr. Pitre for the <u>Proposed Budget Amendment No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2011-2012</u>. Mr. Pitre directed the members to that report in their meeting binder. He informed the members the committee reviewed the original staff proposal the previous day, and then recommended the addition of the spending authorizations contained in the memo from the Prescription Monitoring Program, as identified in Draft #2 of the report. Following a brief discussion, Mr. Pitre moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board approve and adopt the <u>Proposed Budget</u> Amendment No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 (Draft #2).

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Finally, Mr. Pitre expressed his appreciation to the other members of the committee for their work the previous day.

#### B. Application Review Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. McKay for the committee report. Mr. McKay reported the committee met on June 22 to consider five referrals from the staff. Following their interviews and deliberations, the committee disposed of four of the applications. He then presented the following file for Board action.

Casandra Denise Perkins (Applicant for PTC Registration) Mr. McKay moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board approved the application, authorized the issuance of the pharmacy technician candidate registration, suspended the newly-issued registration and any subsequent credential for a period of five years, stayed the execution of the suspension, and then placed the newly-issued registration and any subsequent credential on probation for five years, subject to certain terms enumerated in the consent agreement.

Mr. McKay then informed the members of an error in the delivery of the committee's report during the previous Board meeting. With respect to the issuance of a new permit, the original motion imposed probation on the newly-issued permit. However, the motion should have referenced restrictions but not probation. He requested consideration of a new motion to correct the record.

**St. Mary Pharmacy, LLC (Applicant for Pharmacy Permit)** Mr. McKay moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board approved the application, authorized the issuance of a new pharmacy permit, contingent upon the permit's compliance with certain restrictions as enumerated in the consent agreement.

Finally, Mr. McKay expressed his appreciation to the members participating in the June 22 meeting.

#### C. Reciprocity Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Ms. Hall for the committee report. She reported the committee interviewed 43 candidates earlier that day. She then moved to authorize the issuance of pharmacist licensure by reciprocity for all of those candidates. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Finally, Ms. Hall expressed her appreciation to the other members of the committee for their work that morning.

#### D. Violations Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Bond for the committee report. Mr. Bond reported the committee held an informal conference on June 7-8, 2011 and reviewed the docket for that conference. Since there were no formal hearings scheduled the following day, he suggested the consideration of the pending consent agreements at that time. Mr. Aron requested he proceed, and Mr. Bond presented the following files to the members for their consideration.

**Duston Kenell Stacia (PST.018599)** Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand, and further, assessed investigative and administrative costs.

Oretha Levette Lewis (CPT.008216) Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board suspended the certificate for five years and stayed the execution thereof, and then placed the certificate on probation for five years, beginning July 1, 2011, subject to certain terms as enumerated in the consent agreement, and further, assessed a fine of \$500 as well as administrative costs.

Palm Beach Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (PHY.006086) Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Warning to the permit owner, and further, assessed a fine of \$5,000 as well as administrative costs.

The Veterinary Pharmacy, Inc. (PHY.0055782) Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Warning to the permit owner, and further, assessed a fine of \$1,000 as well as administrative costs.

Our Lady of Guadalupe Pharmacy, LLC (PHY.005564) Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board suspended the pharmacy

permit for a period of five years and stayed the execution thereof, and then placed the pharmacy permit on probation for a period of five years, beginning July 1, 2011, subject to certain terms enumerated in the consent agreement, and further, assessed a fine of \$5,000 as well as investigative and administrative costs.

John Byron Lee (PST.011425) Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board suspended the license for a period of one year and stayed the execution thereof, and then placed the license on probation for a period of one year, beginning July 1, 2011, subject to certain terms enumerated in the consent agreement, and further, assessed a fine of \$2,500 as well as administrative costs.

**Louisiana CVS Pharmacy, LLC d/b/a CVS Pharmacy No. 5327 (PHY.005835)** Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board suspended the pharmacy permit for a period of three years and stayed the execution thereof, and then placed the pharmacy permit on probation for a period of three years, beginning July 1, 2011, subject to certain terms enumerated in the consent agreement, and further, assessed a fine of \$50,000 as well as investigative and administrative costs.

**Village Pharmacy of West Monroe, LLC (PHY.006263)** Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board revoked the pharmacy permit.

**Mitchell Chad Barrett (PST.016125)** Mr. Bond moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand, and further, assessed a fine of \$5,000 as well as investigative and administrative costs.

Finally, Mr. Bond expressed his appreciation to the other members of the committee for their ongoing work.

#### E. Impairment Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Rabb for the committee report. Mr. Rabb reported the committee met the previous day to consider eleven referrals from staff. He then presented the following files for Board action.

**Sharron Renee Barnes Michael Provost (PST.017155)** Mr. Rabb moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the license for an indefinite period of time, effective May 11, 2011.

Steve John Soteropulos (PST.011704) Mr. Rabb moved to accept the

voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the license for an indefinite period of time, effective May 26, 2011.

Candice LeAnn Abbott (CPT.006954) Mr. Rabb moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the certificate for an indefinite period of time, effective May 26, 2011.

**Benji Joseph Juneau (PST.016348)** Mr. Rabb moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the license for an indefinite period of time, effective June 29, 2011.

**Justin Matthew Scalfano (PST.018787)** Mr. Rabb moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board granted the request for reinstatement of the previously suspended license, converted the previous suspension from an indefinite term to one of five years and stayed the execution of the suspension, and then placed the license on probation for a period of five years, beginning August 17, 2011, subject to certain terms as enumerated in the consent agreement.

Jennifer Elizabeth Koruna (PST.016255) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board granted her request for modification of the previously imposed probationary terms by removing the restriction that limited her practice to direct supervision by another pharmacist at all times.

Ronald Allen Barrett (PST.011925) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board granted his request for modification of the previously imposed probationary terms by removing the restriction that limited his practice to direct supervision by another pharmacist at all times.

Charles Clinton McCartney, III (PST.010565) Mr. Rabb moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board granted his request for modification of the previously imposed probationary terms by removing the restriction that limited his practice to direct supervision by another pharmacist at all times.

Mr. Rabb then reported the committee's consideration of a request from a board certified addiction medicine specialist who wished to affiliate with the

Board's Practitioner Recovery Program. He reported the committee's favorable recommendation, and he then moved.

**Resolved**, to approve the addition of Dr. Ronald Taravella to the Board's *Roster of Approved Addictionists*.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Finally, Mr. Rabb expressed his appreciation to the other members of the committee for their deliberations the previous day.

#### F. Reinstatement Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Adams for the committee report. Mr. Adams reported the committee had met earlier that same day to consider two referrals from the staff. He then presented the following files for Board action.

**Donna Fragala White (PST.013041)** Mr. Adams moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board granted her request for reinstatement of the expired license, contingent upon her satisfaction of certain prerequisites as identified in the consent agreement.

**Monique Marie Williams (CPT.006542)** Mr Adams moved to grant her request for reinstatement of the expired certificate. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board authorized staff to issue the certificate renewal.

Finally, Mr. Adams expressed his appreciation to the other members of the committee for their deliberations earlier that day.

At this point, Mr. Aron declared a brief recess. It was noted the members recessed at 2:35 p.m. and then reconvened in open session at 3:00 p.m.

#### G. Tripartite Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Ms. Melancon for the committee report. She noted the committee had not yet scheduled a meeting but would do so soon, taking note of the recent assignments to the committee

#### H. Regulation Revision Committee

Mr. Aron called upon Dr. Anderson for the committee report. She reported the committee met on June 23 to consider its posted agenda. The members agreed to return the following assigned topics back to the Board with recommendations:

Regulatory Proposal 2011-1 ~ PIC Requirements (Draft #5)
 Dr. Anderson reminded the members they approved this proposal at their previous meeting in May 2011 but remanded the accompanying policy and procedure document back to the committee for further revision. The committee made the requested

change in the policy document and suggested addition of the same language to the regulatory proposal. She then moved,

**Resolved**, to approve <u>Regulatory Proposal 2011-1 ~ PIC Requirements (Draft #6)</u>, and further, to authorize the Executive Director to submit the proposed rule for promulgation upon the instruction of the President, and further, to authorize the President to approve acceptable amendments as may become necessary during the promulgation process.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

<u>Policy & Procedure I.A.11 ~ PIC Requirements (Draft #2)</u>
 Following a brief discussion, Dr. Anderson moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board approve <u>Policy & Procedure I.A.11</u> – *PIC Requirements (Draft #2)*.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Finally, Dr. Anderson expressed her appreciation to the other members of the committee for their ongoing efforts, and further, announced the date of the next committee meeting on September 30, 2011.

#### I. Executive Committee

Mr. Aron reminded the members of their annual contract approvals during their prior meeting. Staff learned of a corporate merger involving one of the firms approved, and that Board approval was required for the newly-named firm. Mr. Rabb moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board approve the agreement with NexLearn, LLC as the vendor for the Board's electronic education initiative, at the stipulated rates, in an amount not to exceed \$20,000 for Fiscal Year 2011-2012.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

#### 10. Staff Reports

#### J. Prescription Monitoring Program

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Fontenot for the report. Mr. Fontenot directed the members to the quarterly statistical report in the meeting binder. He reported on the number of prescription transactions reported to the database, and the number of prescribers and dispensers who had acquired access privileges. He also reported on the number of queries made by those prescribers and dispensers, as well as law enforcement and regulatory agencies.

He reminded the members about the 2009 change in the PMP law that authorized the Board to issue waivers to the duty to report data to the program, especially for those pharmacies who have been submitting zero reports for the entire time frame. He reminded them of their previous decisions, granting approximately 190 waivers to date. He then presented a list of twelve additional pharmacies requesting such a waiver. Mr. McKay

moved,

**Resolved**, to authorize the issuance of PMP reporting waivers to each of the twelve pharmacies which had executed the standard consent agreement for that purpose.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Mr. Fontenot described some pending enhancements planned for the program, including log-outs and other minor improvements.

Finally, Mr. Fontenot indicated the completion of his report.

#### K. Report of General Counsel

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Finalet for the report. Mr. Finalet presented the following files to the Board for their consideration.

**Drema Montz Millet (PST.009963)** Mr. Pitre moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand to be published in the Board's newsletter, and further, assessed a fine of \$250 as well as administrative costs.

**Britany Rae Boutin (PTC.016641)** Mr. Pitre moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board revoked the registration, and further, prohibited any future application for the reinstatement of the registration or for any other credential issued by the Board.

**Edwin Paul Domingue**, **Jr. (PST.010459)** Mr. Pitre moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board issued a Letter of Reprimand, and further assessed a fine of \$1,000 as well as administrative costs.

Alena Ruth Rashall Fontenot (CPT.009215) Mr. Pitre moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board revoked the certificate, and further, prohibited any future application for the reinstatement of the certificate or for any other credential issued by the Board.

Alaina Marie Portier (CPT.010076) Mr. Pitre moved to approve the voluntary consent agreement. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board revoked the certificate, and further, prohibited any future application for the reinstatement of the certificate or for any other credential issued by the Board.

**Shawn Adrienne Mouton (PTC.016780)** Mr. Pitre moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the registration for an indefinite period of time, effective June 8, 2011.

**Suresh Kumar Donepudi (CDS.017933-MD)** Mr. Pitre moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the license for an indefinite period of time, effective August 17, 2011.

**LaShunda Renee Williams (CPT.006933)** Mr. Pitre moved to accept the voluntary surrender of the credential. The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative. The Board accepted the voluntary surrender, resulting in suspension of the certificate for an indefinite period of time, effective August 9, 2011.

Finally, Mr. Finalet indicated completion of his report.

#### L. Report of Executive Director

Mr. Aron called upon Mr. Broussard for the report. Mr. Broussard directed the members to his report which was posted in the Boardroom Library prior to the meeting; it was also included in the meeting binder. He reviewed the following topics:

- Meeting Activity
- Reports

Census Reports – Credentials & Compliance Divisions Production Reports – Credentials Division Exceptions Report

- 1. PIC at Multiple Pharmacies
- 2. Special Work Permits

Compliance Division Statistical Report for FY 2010-2011 Annual Report for FY 2010-2011

Mr. Broussard reminded the members of their duty to approve the report prior to its submission to the Governor's office. Mr. McKay moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board approve the <u>Annual Report</u> <u>for Fiscal Year 2010-2011</u>, and further, direct a copy of the Office of the Governor.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

Examinations

MPJE NAPLEX PTCB

Operations

Credentials Division Compliance Division Administrative Division

Mr. Broussard reminded the members of the annual audit by the Office of the Legislative Auditor and that it was in

process. In connection therewith, he directed the members to the <u>Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire for Fiscal Year 2010-2011</u> and their obligation to approve the document. Mr. McKay moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board approve the <u>Louisiana</u> <u>Compliance Questionnaire for Fiscal Year 2010-2011</u>, and further, authorize the president and secretary to execute the document on our behalf.

The motion was adopted after a unanimous vote in the affirmative.

State Activities

Louisiana Legislature Board of Veterinary Medicine

National Activities

National Association of Boards of Pharmacy (NABP)
MALTAGON
NABP-AACP District 6 Annual Meeting
US Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA)

International Activities

CHRE International Observatory on the Regulation of Health Professionals

International Pharmaceutical Federation Finally, Mr. Broussard indicated completion of his report.

- 13. Request for Opinion: Disposition of Undispensed Prescription Medications from Central Fill Pharmacy; LAC 46:LIII.1141 George Chapman, Wal-Mart Pharmacies Mr. Aron recognized Mr. Chapman and his associates who were present. Mr. Broussard directed the members to the supporting materials in their meeting binder. Mr. Chapman described the operations of his firm's central fill pharmacy forwarding dispensed prescriptions to their local pharmacies for patient pick-up, as well as their proposal for the medications not claimed by the patient. Following the presentation and discussion but prior to any vote, Mr. Chapman withdrew his request for the opinion.
- 14. Request for Opinion: Manufacture & Distribution at Wholesale of Patient Specific Treatment Set Antigen Laboratories

Mr. Aron reminded the members they had received a presentation on this topic during their February 2011 meeting and then taken the matter under advisement. Mr. Broussard reminded the member of the circumstances surrounding the original request and actions taken by staff. Following substantial discussion of differences between a prescription and medical order, as well as medication preparation activities that do not constitute the practice of pharmacy, Mr. Pitre moved,

**Resolved**, that the Board rescind the Cease & Desist order issued to Antigen Laboratories.

The motion was adopted after a majority vote in the affirmative; Mr. Bond, Mr. McKay, Mr. Moore, Ms. Reed, Dr. Simonson, and Mr. Soileau objected.

#### 15. Announcements

Mr. Aron reminded the members and staff of the calendar notes, and then directed them to that information in their meeting packets.

#### 16. Adjourn

Mr. Adams moved to recess. Having completed the tasks itemized on the posted agenda, and with no further business before the Board, Mr. Aron adjourned the meeting at 6:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lois R. Anderson, PharmD Secretary